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STATE OF INDIANA

Request for Information 16-052


INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

On Behalf Of
Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission

Solicitation For: 
Excavator Training System

Response Due Date: January 21, 2016 by 3:00 p.m. EST







Jennifer Mayfield, Strategic Sourcing Analyst
Indiana Department of Administration
Procurement Division
402 W. Washington St., Room W478
Indianapolis, Indiana  46204

RFI 16-052
Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission
Excavator Training System
Proposal Due Date: January 27st, 2016
This Request for Information (RFI) is issued solely for information and planning purposes only, and does not constitute a solicitation. Responses to the RFI will not be returned.  Responses to this RFI are not an offer and cannot be accepted by the State to form a binding contract.  The State of Indiana or state agencies are not liable for any cost incurred by the vendor in response to this RFI.
PURPOSE OF THE REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
The purpose of this RFI is to gain knowledge of an Excavator Training System, as explained in more detail below. The information provided in the responses to this RFI may also be used to assist in the development of a Request for Proposal (RFP) at a later date.  There will not be a contract resulting directly from the RFI; however, the State may elect to limit participation to vendors that respond to the RFI, if and when the State releases an RFP.  
The information gained from this RFI may be used in the development of a competitive solicitation process, leading to the selection of a contractor that is best suited to provide the solution(s) that meets the Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission (IURC) requirements.  The IURC is interested in learning about all types of solutions available in the marketplace for the creation of online and in-person training modules.  Respondents should provide full details about their solution in order for the IURC to gain a clear understanding of the complete solution being proposed.

The IURC may request in-person demonstrations from Respondents of this RFI for the purpose of collecting additional information and/or receiving clarification on proposal details.  Invitations may be extended to Respondents of this RFI subsequent to the receipt of responses.  The demonstrations will be conducted at offices of the IURC in the PNC Center in Indianapolis, IN at a date to be determined after review of the proposal submissions. 

BACKGROUND/CURRENT OPERATIONS
The IURC seeks information regarding the creation of online and in-person training course content focused on underground facility damage prevention. Ind. Code § 8-1-26-24 creates the Underground Plant Protection Account, which is administered by the IURC and can only be used for certain purposes including “training and educational programs for contractors, excavators, locators, operators, and other persons involved in underground plant protection.”
The Excavator Training System the IURC envisions shall be free for users. The intended audience is Indiana’s excavators, locators, contractors, and the general public. Training will include training/best practice courses  that professionals and the general public can access or attend to reduce damages to underground facilities and mitigate additional damage when hits do occur. 
Training courses would need out-of-the-box capability so additional training can be added and existing courses can be modified by IURC staff, based on law updates or best practice changes. In the alternative, the vendor will offer a reasonable maintenance package with hours built into the contract to make modifications and additions.  The IURC shall retain unrestricted rights to all training items created.  The vendor may be permitted to share the content with other parties.
Online training portions should be designed with mobile platforms as well as PC/MAC use in mind.
Evaluating the effectiveness of the training is crucial to the process. The IURC shall require access to and easy tracking of metrics including, at minimum, participation numbers, audience segment, and testing results. 
This project will be progressively expanded, with Stage 1 consisting of potentially 3 to 5 high quality safety/best practice education sessions, quizzes, and completion certificates for both online and in person training modules. 
The IURC wants to determine approximate costs and information for each area of the project, including: 
· Online training module creation
· In-person training module creation
· (If not included in the overall cost) itemized costs for changes to an online training module
· (If not included in the overall cost) itemized costs for changes to an in-person training module

Examples of Potential Training Modules:
1) How do I know if I am an “excavator”?
2) Recognizing a pipeline leak.  
3) Hand excavation – why we do it and how it is done.
4) How to properly use a spotter in the tolerance zone.
5) How to properly use the 811 service.
6) What to do if you hit an underground facility.  
7) Help! It’s been 48 hours and my worksite is not marked!    
8) Simple white lining for home owners.
9) White lining for excavators.
10) Indiana Code chapter 8-1-26 requirements.


SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS
The IURC asks that all Respondents provide detailed responses the following topics:
1) Company name and contact information.
2) What is your experience with the underground facility safety community?
3) Describe your experience in creating online or in person training. In particular, please list any experience working for a government agency (and note if it was Indiana or another state), excavator, or utility company.
4) Will you use subcontractors to provide either the online or in-person training modules or will you develop both systems in-house? 
5) What type of training design do you recommend for home owners (video, text, power point, interactive, hands-on demonstration, other) and why?
6) What type of training design do you recommend for commercial excavators/contractors (video, text, power point, interactive, hands-on demonstration, other) and why?
7) What is the approximate cost per module for creating online multimedia training?
8) What is the approximate per module cost to develop in-person training? 
9) What solutions, if any, do you recommend to reach potential participants who do not have internet access?
10) What sources would you use for the training information (Common Ground Alliance, the federal Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration, other)?
11) How do you plan to provide project updates and solicit input from the IURC?
12) What is the approximate turnaround time for Stage 1 of the project? 
PRICING
Please provide all-inclusive pricing for the Excavator Training System.   Please provide itemized pricing for future changes to online and in-person trainings, if applicable.    







KEY RFI DATES
Below is a chart that contains all of the deadlines associated with RFI 16-052:

	ACTIVITY:
	DATE:

	Issue of RFI
	December11, 2015

	Deadline to Submit Written Questions
	December 23, 2015

	Response to Written Questions
	January 5, 2016

	Submission of Proposals
	January 21, 2016



PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS SUBMISSION
All questions in regards to RFI 16-052 must be submitted in writing via email to jmayfield@idoa.in.gov no later than 3:00 p.m. EST December 23rd, 2015. The email subject line should contain the following phrase “16-052, Excavator Training System”.
All proposals must be submitted via email to jmayfield@idoa.in.gov no later than 3:00 p.m. EST January 21st, 2016. The email subject line should contain the following phrase “16-052, Excavator Training System”. 

It is important to note that all information submitted in Respondents’ proposals to this RFI 16-052 will be kept confidential by IDOA and will not be made available to the public unless this RFI results in the release of an RFP at a later date. If an RFP results from this RFI 16-052, then the information contained in the proposal submissions for this RFI 16-052 must be made available to the public once the resulting RFP has been awarded and the protest period has ended. However, any proprietary information can be kept confidential by IDOA as long as it is marked clearly in your proposal submission as “CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL”. It is the responsibility of the Respondent to ensure that all confidential information is easily identifiable to ensure it is not released as non-confidential material. Please note that the IURC cannot keep documents confidential under the Indiana Access to Public Records Act unless they are considered trade secrets.
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